
Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 1 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

OCTOBER 3, 2012 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 

Robert Wolfe, Mayor     9 
Bob Grenier, Vice Mayor 10 
Kirby Smith, Councilmember  11 
Norman Hope, Councilmember  12 
Lori Pfister, Councilmember 13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 18 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 19 
Brad Hayes, Utility Director 20 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 21 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 22 
Bill Neron, Economic Development Director 23 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 24 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 25 
Stoney Lubins, Police Department 26 
Tammey Rogers, Director of Community Services 27 
 28 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 29 
 30 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  31 
 32 
II. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 33 
 34 
Tom Cavanaugh, First Baptist Church of Mt. Dora, gave the invocation and those present recited 35 
the pledge of allegiance. 36 
 37 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 38 
 39 
Mr. Drury said staff had no changes. Mayor Wolfe requested to add Council approval of a 40 
proclamation for Taiwan National Day (added as Item 3A). 41 
 42 
MOTION 43 
 44 
Bob Grenier moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Kirby Smith.  The motion carried 45 
unanimously 5-0. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 2 
 
  
 
lV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 1 
 2 
MOTION 3 
 4 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the minutes of the Public Hearing of September 19, 2012 5 
and the Regular City Council Meeting of September 19, 2012, seconded by Norm Hope.  6 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 7 
 8 
V. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 9 
 10 
Tab 2) Recognition to Chief Keith - Certified Public Manager & 2012 Askew Award  11 
 12 
Mayor Wolfe recognized Chief Keith for receiving the 2012 Askew Award from the Florida Society 13 
of Certified Public Managers. Chief Keith received the award along with members of a project 14 
team which included the Fire Chiefs from Eustis and Mount Dora.  In addition Mayor Wolfe noted 15 
that Chief Keith has received his certification as a Certified Public Manager. 16 
 17 
Tab 3) Recognition to Dr. Susan Caddell and family for Donation of Little Free Library in 18 
Wooton Park 19 
 20 
Ms. Rogers recognized Dr. Caddell and Mr. Danny Caddell for their donation of a Little Free 21 
Library in Wooton Park in honor of Dr. Caddell’s father, Mayor Eugene Glenn. Mayor Wolfe 22 
presented a plaque from the City to the Caddell family. 23 
 24 
Tab 3A) Proclamation Acknowledging Taiwan National Day 25 
 26 
Mayor Wolfe stated he would like to have the proclamation prepared for Taiwan National Day 27 
approved by Council in order to forward it to the Taiwanese Consultant in Miami for their 28 
upcoming celebration on Friday. 29 
 30 
MOTION 31 
 32 
Bob Grenier moved to send a proclamation, seconded by Kirby Smith. The motion was 33 
approved unanimously 5-0. 34 
 35 
Vl. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EXPARTE CONTACTS 36 
 37 
Attorney Williams said there are no quasi-judicial matters on the agenda. 38 
 39 
Vll. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS INTO THE RECORD 40 
 41 
Ms. Barnett read the following ordinances/resolution into the record by title only: 42 

 43 
ORDINANCE 2012-26 44 

 45 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA AMENDING THE 46 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS BY AMENDING CHAPTER 3, 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 3 
 
  
 

DEFINING "WINE AND BEER BAR"; AMENDING CHAPTER 8, TABLE 8-2, 1 
PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES, BY ALLOWING WINE AND BEER BARS IN 2 
THE CD (COMMERCIAL DOWNTOWN) DISTRICT AND BY AMENDING NOTE 3 
20 OF TABLE 8-2, CLARIFYING THAT RESTAURANTS PROVIDING 4 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES WILL BE CLASSIFIED AS RESTAURANTS 5 
PROVIDING CERTAIN CONDITIONS ARE MET; SUBJECT TO THE RULES, 6 
REGULATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES 7 
COUNCIL; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 8 

 9 
ORDINANCE 2012-31 10 

 11 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, REZONING 12 
APPROXIMATELY 3.61 ACRES OF PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE 13 
WEST SIDE OF WOOTON PARK, SOUTH OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 14 
FROM PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) TO PFD (PUBLIC FACILITIES DISTRICT); 15 
SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY 16 
THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 17 

 18 
ORDINANCE 2012-32 19 

 20 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 21 
TAVARES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 2020, 22 
PROVIDING FOR A CHANGE OF FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION ON 23 
APPROXIMATELY 3.61 ACRES OF PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON 24 
THE WEST SIDE OF WOOTON PARK, SOUTH OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-25 
WAY; FROM COMMERCIAL DOWNTOWN TO PUBLIC 26 
FACILITY/INSTITUTIONAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 27 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 28 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 29 

 30 
ORDINANCE 2012-33 31 

 32 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCES 87-24, 99-21, AND 2007-36 AND 33 
SECTIONS 17-75 AND 17-77 OF THE CITY OF TAVARES LAND 34 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO STORM WATER 35 
DRAINAGE UTILITY FEES; INCREASING SAID FEE FROM $4.50/ESFU TO 36 
$5.50/ESFU; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 37 

 38 
 39 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - 13 40 
 41 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 42 
PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES, FACILITIES AND 43 
PROGRAMS; DESCRIBING THE METHOD OF ASSESSING FIRE 44 
PROTECTION ASSESSED COSTS; IMPOSING FIRE SERVICES 45 
ASSESSMENTS AGAINST ASSESSED PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE 46 
CITY OF TAVARES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2012; 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 4 
 
  
 

APPROVING THE RATE OF ASSESSMENT; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT 1 
ROLL; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS AND HARDSHIP ASSISTANCE; AND 2 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 3 

 4 
Vlll. CONSENT AGENDA 5 
 6 
Mayor Wolfe asked if anyone in the audience objected to any item on the Consent Agenda. 7 
 8 
MOTION 9 
 10 
Kirby Smith moved to approve all items on the Consent Agenda [Authorization to Issue 11 
Requests for Proposals for Downtown Stormwater Phase l Financing; Authorization to 12 
Issue Request for Proposals for Meter Replacement Project Financing; Authorization to 13 
Issue Request for Proposals for USDA Interim Financing for Downtown Water/Wastewater 14 
Project; Approval of Letter to be Sent by Mayor to FDOT Engineer re: City Infrastructure on 15 
the State Road 19 Right of Way; and Request from Tavares High School to hold 16 
Bonfire/Pep Rally at Bus Barn during Homecoming Events]. The motion was seconded by 17 
Bob Grenier. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 18 
 19 
lX – ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 20 
 21 
Tabs 9-12 – Ordinances #2012-26, #2012-31, #2012-32, and #2012-33 – Read for first 22 
reading only. 23 
 24 
Second Reading 25 
 26 
None. 27 
 28 
RESOLUTIONS 29 
 30 
Tab 13) Resolution #2012-13 Adoption of Fire Assessment Roll 31 
 32 
Ms. Houghton stated this resolution represented the final task for the 2013 fiscal year budget. She 33 
reviewed the previous actions taken on the Fire Assessment and the dates of the public meetings when 34 
the fire assessment was on the agenda. She noted the city attorney has prepared the assessment roll 35 
resolution which provides the definitions for all the properties within the city and an assessment roll 36 
based on the property records from the county and the city utility records for the residential properties 37 
and for the non-residential properties.  Staff recommends two options:  to approve Resolution #2012-13 38 
which provides the assessment roll and authorizes implementation for the affected properties, or to not 39 
approve. 40 
 41 
Mr. Drury noted that the actual fire assessment rate has gone down from that previously estimated. 42 
Instead of $12.75 per month the fee will be $11.83 per month for residential. This also lowered the 43 
commercial rate from about $28 a month to $25 a month. The millage rate was significantly lowered from 44 
6.89 to 5.985 and the actual fire assessment for residential and commercial is lower than anticipated. 45 
 46 
Mayor Wolfe asked if anyone in the audience had comments. 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 5 
 
  
 
MOTION 1 
 2 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Resolution #2012-13 for adoption of the fire assessment roll, 3 
seconded by Norm Hope. The motion carried unanimously 4-1 as follows: 4 
 5 
Robert Wolfe    Yes 6 
Kirby Smith    Yes 7 
Lori Pfister    No 8 
Bob Grenier    Yes 9 
Norm Hop    Yes 10 
 11 
X. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 12 
 13 
Tab 14) Railroad Bridge Dedication  14 
 15 
Mr. Drury stated that at the August 15th City Council Meeting, Vice Mayor Grenier spoke in support of 16 
dedicating the Dora Canal Railroad Bridge to Clayton Bishop. After receiving input from the audience it 17 
was suggested that the issue be tabled until after completion of the budget in October. The City 18 
subsequently received a letter from the Tavares Historical Society requesting that the topic be delayed 19 
until either the first Council Meeting in December or later in January. Additional information was also 20 
received from the historical society which has been included in the agenda packet. 21 
 22 
Councilmember Smith said he had no objection to allowing additional time. There was consensus to 23 
table the issue until after January 1, 2013. 24 
 25 
Tab 15) Approval of Contract with AVCON Inc. for Design Team Services for Wooton Park 26 
Expansion 27 
 28 
Mayor Wolfe passed the gavel to Vice Mayor Grenier to chair the meeting. He said he had a 29 
conflict of interest on this matter which is that he has a bid submitted to do work on the restoration 30 
of the train station. 31 
 32 
Attorney Williams said that this is a potential relationship as a subcontract bidder to the general 33 
contractor with whom the city has a contract. He said it is not a conflict for the mayor to be a 34 
subcontractor but he cannot vote on any issues to do with the job. 35 
 36 
Vice Mayor Grenier asked Mr. Neron to make his presentation. 37 
 38 
Mr. Neron said this is the construction of a replica of the old train depot next to the train platform 39 
at Wooton Park. In June 2011 a preliminary estimate was provided for the construction of the 40 
station of $450,000. Staff then met with the architect for full design working with both the Tavares 41 
Eustis Gulf Railroad Company and the Tavares Chamber of Commerce. The Chamber is 42 
contributing $150,000 as up front rental for the first 15 years to help with the construction of the 43 
project. In addition the city has a signed lease agreement both with the Chamber and the 44 
Railroad for rental of the facility. Mr. Neron noted the original estimate was based on these 45 
organizations sharing common utility systems, however, during design of the facility it has been 46 
determined that it would be more effective to divide the building down the middle for both 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 6 
 
  
 
operations. The price on the building has been finalized at $516,766, approximately $67,000 over 1 
the budgeted amount. He said staff has identified sources of funding to cover this cost being 2 
$42,000 from the fees anticipated from both the county and the City of Eustis on the Dora Canal 3 
Bridge Match project and the remaining from left over funds from the original Wooton Park 4 
construction. He said the $516,766 includes over $50,000 of value engineering of cuts made in 5 
the project on various aspects while still not sacrificing the historical aspects of the building. The 6 
design plans have also been included in the agenda packet. Staff recommendation is for Council 7 
to approve the design plans, the guaranteed maximum price as stated, and the additional funds 8 
coming from the sources identified and authorize the City Administrator to issue a Notice to 9 
Proceed on the project with an estimated construction time of six months. 10 
 11 
Councilmember Smith clarified that this is a maximum guaranteed price but it could go lower. 12 
 13 
Mr. Neron said that for each subcontractor there were a minimum of three bids and some of the 14 
pricing may still be being negotiated, however the price cannot be exceeded. Attorney Williams 15 
said it could exceed the price but if it does the builder takes the risk. 16 
 17 
Vice Mayor Grenier asked for comment from the audience. 18 
 19 
MOTION 20 
 21 
Norm Hope moved to approve [the plans and Guaranteed Maximum Price of $516,766 for 22 
the Train Depot Reconstruction Project with funding of $450,000 as approved by the 23 
Council on December 21, 2011 and additional funding of $42,000 in Dora Canal Bridge 24 
Match reimbursements and $24,766 from the balance of the original Wooton Park 25 
Construction funds, and authorize the City Administrator to issue a notice to proceed on 26 
the project], seconded by Kirby Smith  27 
 28 
The motion carried 4-0 as follows: 29 
 30 
Robert Wolfe   Abstained 31 
Bob Grenier   Yes 32 
Kirby Smith   Yes 33 
Lori Pfister   Yes 34 
Norm Hope   Yes 35 
 36 
Tab 16) Contract with AVCON for the Design and Engineering on the Wooton Park 37 
Expansion 38 
 39 
Mr. Neron stated that based on the approval of Council of the ranking of AVCON for design and 40 
engineering services, staff has now negotiated a scope of work and fee estimates. The scope of 41 
work is broken down into two segments: the first segment is for basic services—permitting and 42 
the design of all the basic components described in the bond issue. The second segment is for 43 
additional services that the city would like to do should funds become available. Staff is 44 
requesting that Council approve the bifurcated scope of work, the two fee estimates, (with the 45 
understanding that the additional fees would not be authorized unless Council gives that 46 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 7 
 
  
 
authorization), and direct the City Attorney to prepare a contract and authorize the City 1 
Administrator to sign. 2 
 3 
Discussion followed on the propose boat and trailer parking design and the potential for additional 4 
seaplane use. 5 
 6 
Vice Mayor Grenier asked for clarification on what information will be coming back to Council. Mr. 7 
Drury said the company will design all the improvements which will show the number of boat 8 
parking, slips, sea plane ramp parking, etc. and that information will be brought back to Council 9 
for approval. 10 
 11 
Councilmember Smith asked about the time line. Mr. Neron said it will depend largely on the 12 
permitting process with FDEP and the Lake County Water Management District. Mr. Drury said 13 
he estimated that within 90-100 days the city will have a design to submit to Council that will be 14 
submitted for permitting.  15 
 16 
MOTION 17 
 18 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Option 1 [Scope of work and fee estimates for the Wooton 19 
Park Expansion Project and direct the City Attorney to prepare an appropriate contract 20 
with AVCON Engineering and authorize the City Administrator execute the contract], 21 
seconded by Kirby Smith. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 22 
 23 
Tab 17) Request to Amend Roundabout Landscape Plan 24 
 25 
Mr. Thompson stated he had encountered a roundabout similar to the one planned for Tavares in 26 
a town in Michigan recently which contained a giant flagpole. He said staff is seeking approval 27 
from Council to amend the Lake County’s approved landscape design for the roundabout. The 28 
current plan is to landscape the interior of the roundabout with sable palms and shrubbery. He 29 
showed an overhead of a proposal plan that would delete the 11 sable palms. In conjunction with 30 
the landscape modification the proposal is to erect a 60 ft. flagpole with the appropriately sized 12 31 
x 18 American flag in the center. The County has verbally expressed no objection although all 32 
costs of the erection and maintenance of the flag would be not be borne by the County. He said 33 
the estimated cost is $10,000 and staff proposes to finance the project through a donation 34 
campaign. Mr. Thompson said if Council approves the project a committee will be formed and the 35 
collection process determined. Mr. Thompson said he plans to personally donate $1,000 to kick 36 
start the funding campaign. 37 
 38 
There was discussion regarding asking the County to pay what it would have cost them to 39 
purchase the sable palms. 40 
  41 
Councilmember Pfister noted she is supportive of the patriotic aspect but said she had concerns 42 
about not having the sable palms and the landscaping. She said she would rather have this at the 43 
city gateway or public safety complex.  44 
 45 
Vice Mayor Grenier said he had had a dream of having a statute of Major St. Clair Abrams 46 
[founder of the City] at the roundabout but he appreciated Mr. Thompson’s idea. Councilmember 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 8 
 
  
 
Pfister noted the City should have a city flag flying underneath the American flag. Vice Mayor 1 
Grenier said a few years back he had brought that forward to work on as the city did adopt a flag 2 
many years ago and there is a need to adopt a new flag. 3 
 4 
Councilmember Smith, Mayor Wolfe and Councilmember Hope spoke in support of having the 5 
flag in the roundabout. Councilmember Pfister suggested including the palm trees with the pole in 6 
the middle. 7 
 8 
Mayor Wolfe asked for comment from the audience. 9 
 10 
Jeff Coulson 11 
 12 
Mr. Coulson said he had been on Council for a brief time in 1996. He said he would be retiring 13 
from the military in the near future. He commented there is a problem in the Country with a lack of 14 
appreciation for the sacrifices of the military. He discussed making a donation and that he 15 
appreciated support for the veterans. 16 
 17 
Brenda Smith, Tavares Historical Society 18 
 19 
Ms. Smith said she understood Ms. Pfister’s concern but that she believed the roundabout could 20 
be designed to include both the flag and the palms. She said the Tavares Historical Society has a 21 
time line that stopped in 1980 and since then the town has exploded with history. She said this 22 
will be another instance that will be on that historical time line. She said the roundabout would 23 
look better with trees and landscaping. 24 
 25 
MOTION 26 
 27 
Kirby Smith moved to approve the changes that Chris Thompson has suggested of 28 
replacing the palm trees or adding a flag pole for the redesign of the roundabout and 29 
authorizing him to get with Council to come up with a donation process, seconded by 30 
Norm Hope. 31 
 32 
Councilmember Smith clarified his motion that he intended it to include the option of palm 33 
trees. 34 
 35 
Mr. Drury said that staff will bring back the design to Council and it will have sable palms and a 36 
flag. 37 
 38 
Mayor Wolfe said when the redesign is being done that he would like the city to request that the 39 
County participate in the cost.  40 
 41 
Councilmember Pfister said she felt it would be important to have the site include trees especially 42 
considering the holiday coming up. 43 
 44 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 45 
 46 
  47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 9 
 
  
 
Tab 18) City Administrator Performance Evaluation 1 
 2 
Mr. Drury stated he has enclosed all of the Council’s performance evaluations in the agenda for 3 
the annual city administrator evaluation. He said this is also an opportunity to discuss any 4 
compensation adjustment for the upcoming year. 5 
 6 
Mayor Wolfe asked for direction from Council regarding negotiation of an agreement with Mr. 7 
Drury. 8 
 9 
Councilmember Smith said he would approve the increase to be the same as the current 10 
employees (2.5%). Vice Mayor Grenier concurred. Councilmember Hope said he would like to 11 
see 5% because of his leadership skills. Mayor Wolfe agreed with Mr. Hope. 12 
 13 
Vice Mayor Grenier asked for clarification that any agreement negotiated by the Mayor would 14 
come back to Council. Councilmember Pfister said this is a difficult decision for her but it had also 15 
been difficult for her to vote for a fire assessment when she felt the budget had not been trimmed. 16 
She said this was not a reflection on Mr. Drury’s performance but her concern about the 17 
residents. 18 
 19 
Councilmember Smith said he did not want to go back and forth on this issue. 20 
 21 
Mr. Drury said he would appreciate it if Council could make a decision on what they would 22 
authorize the Mayor to sign off on.  23 
 24 
Councilmember Hope asked how this would affect the budget. Mr. Drury said the 2.5% is within 25 
the budget and the other 2.5% would be probably taken from reserves.  26 
 27 
Discussion followed regarding some amendments that may come before Council regarding 28 
personnel cost savings which could be used to fund the addition 2.5%. 29 
 30 
Mayor Wolfe spoke in support of Mr. Drury receiving the addition increase. 31 
 32 
MOTION 33 
 34 
Kirby Smith moved to direct the Mayor to work with the City Administrator on a 2.5% raise, 35 
seconded by Lori Pfister. 36 
 37 
Attorney Williams said Mr. Drury is the Council’s employee and the more appropriate motion is to 38 
increase Mr. Drury’s pay by 2.5%. Councilmember Smith said that was his intention. 39 
Councilmember Smith noted the 2.5% was budgeted and nothing will change on the budget if this 40 
passes. 41 
 42 
The motion carried unanimously 3-2 as follows: 43 
 44 
Robert Wolfe   No 45 
Norm Hope   No 46 
Bob Grenier   Yes 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 10 
 
  
 
Lori Pfister   Yes 1 
Kirby Smith   Yes 2 
 3 
Tab 16) Review and Establish Council’s Fiscal Year 2013 Collective Broad Based Goals 4 
 5 
Mr. Drury noted as part of the evaluation process, Council identifies goals for the City 6 
Administrator to work on. He said last year a collective list of goals was developed and he has 7 
provided that list in the agenda including the goals set by Councilmember Gamble. He said he 8 
had also identified the status of each goal. He said he would be identifying each councilmember’s 9 
goals and asking Council if they wished to discuss any of those goals. He said the rest of the 10 
goals not pulled for discussion he would consider to be approval as goals to work on. Mr. Drury 11 
referred to the list of goals of each councilmember. The following items were pulled for 12 
discussion: 13 
 14 
Item #4 from Vice Mayor Grenier’s list and Item #2 and #6 from Councilmember Pfister’s list. 15 
 16 
Item #4 – Strengthen and Enforce Construction and Building Guidelines and for Historic 17 
Preservation and New Construction with the Downtown Historic & Entertainment District 18 
 19 
Vice Mayor Grenier said the building guidelines and codes are very old, vague and weak. He said 20 
there could be a chance that new construction and renovations would not fit into the city’s 21 
historical integrity and the aesthetics the city is trying to create. He noted this included the 22 
residential neighborhoods because a modern looking house could replace a historic home. 23 
 24 
Discussion followed on the issue of government restrictions, whether further guidelines would be 25 
burdensome on property owners, and the option of historic replications and materials. 26 
 27 
Councilmember Hope asked Mr. Skutt if the current guidelines were sufficient to prevent a house 28 
from being built that would not fit in to Tavares. Mr. Skutt said the City adopted architectural 29 
standards for the construction of new commercial buildings but the standards do not extend to the 30 
residential area of the Historic District for construction of new homes. He noted that the Historic 31 
District encompasses both commercial and residential. 32 
 33 
Councilmember Hope said the Horizon Team could look at the guidelines and bring to Council for 34 
approval or disapproval. Mr. Drury said the issue is that he has limited resources and limited staff 35 
and did not want to spend staff time on issues that Council has no interest in. He discussed the 36 
time that would be involved in reviewing the guidelines. He noted there is presently a Horizon 37 
Team that reviews codes. 38 
 39 
The majority of Council indicated they were not in favor of spending time on this goal. 40 
 41 
Item #2 - Purchase of Magrone Property 42 
 43 
Councilmember Pfister said staff could continue to look at grants to enable the city to purchase 44 
this property.  45 
 46 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 11 
 
  
 
Discussion followed regarding the city’s budget, lack of funding to acquire the property, and the 1 
preference of the majority of Council for the property to remain in the private sector. 2 
 3 
Item #6- Expand Arts and Entertainment (Community theaters, Concerts, Street Entertainers, 4 
etc.) 5 
 6 
Councilmember Pfister said the city needs more cultural variety in the downtown. Councilmember 7 
Smith said he had flagged this issue because of the community theater. Councilmember Pfister 8 
said she wanted the city to be supportive of a community group that would like to have a 9 
community theater. Mayor Wolfe encouraged Ms. Pfister to have the theater group appear before 10 
Council to make a presentation. Councilmember Smith he would support a private business 11 
creating a theater.  12 
 13 
Councilmember Hope said he supports having more activities in Tavares however it would be 14 
unfair to Mr. Drury to be given a goal to find a community theater in the next year compared to all 15 
the structural projects that are of higher priority. Mayor Wolfe said he did not think this needed to 16 
be considered as a specific goal for Mr. Drury but that Council would agree with the concept 17 
generally. 18 
 19 
Xl. OLD BUSINESS 20 
 21 
Xll. NEW BUSINESS 22 
 23 
Xlll. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD  24 
 25 
XlV. REPORTS 26 
 27 
Tab 14) City Administrator 28 
 29 
Mr. Drury said the next Lake Sumter MPO meeting will be December 5th. 30 
 31 
City Clerk  32 
 33 
Human Resources 34 
 35 
Economic Development 36 
 37 
Mr. Neron thanked Council for their support of the train depot and the Wooton Park expansion. 38 
 39 
Public Communications 40 
 41 
Public Works Department 42 
 43 
Utility Department 44 
 45 
Police Department 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – October 3, 2012 
Page 12 
 
  
 
Fire Department 1 
 2 
Community Services Department 3 
 4 
Finance Department 5 
 6 
Ms. Houghton reminded those present to remember the tax benefit of a donation to the flag pole 7 
project noting the city would provide a tax receipt. 8 
 9 
City Attorney 10 
 11 
Attorney Williams stated that his office will match Mr. Thompson’s donation. 12 
 13 
Attorney Williams noted that Attorney Smith-Frye had her baby daughter yesterday afternoon at 4 14 
p.m. and her name is Amelia Kate. He said mother and daughter are doing well. 15 
 16 
Tab 26) City Council 17 
 18 
Councilmember Pfister 19 
 20 
Councilmember Pfister said she is excited about the new fiscal year, the upcoming projects and 21 
the new goals established. 22 
 23 
Councilmember Hope 24 
 25 
Councilmember Hope thanked Mr. Neron and Ms. Rogers for their assistance in providing 26 
information he needed for speaking to a group of residents recently. He said he also appreciated 27 
that when he had called staff members for assistance they have been very responsive which 28 
helps him in making decisions. 29 
 30 
Vice Mayor Grenier – No report 31 
 32 
Councilmember Smith 33 
 34 
Councilmember Smith stated in that on this day in 1964 the first buffalo wing was served in 35 
Anchor Bar in Buffalo, New York.  36 
 37 
Mayor Wolfe – No report. 38 
 39 
ADJOURNMENT 40 
 41 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 42 
 43 
Respectfully submitted, 44 
 45 
______________________________ 46 
Nancy A. Barnett, C.M.C., City Clerk  47 


